
In accordance with Executive Order No. 65, some Board members will attend the meeting 
by electronic means.

4:30 p.m. - Walk thru at Central Office

WASHINGTON COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION

December 10, 2020

5:00 PM

Central Office

I. CALL TO ORDER
II. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of Minutes - Regular Meeting - November 5, 2020   Board 
Retreat - November 19, 2020
  Called Meeting - November 23, 2020
  Workshop - December 1, 2020

B. Finance
C. Personnel

III. CONSIDERATION OF MEETING AGENDA
IV. DIRECTOR'S REPORT

A. Recognition of Dr. Mary Beth Hopkins
B. Virtual Administration Input
C. Request to extend high school technical support position through end of 

2020-2021 school year
D.
E. Approve the attached Federal Disposition Form to allow disposal of the 

listed federal programs equipment/furniture and declare Boones Creek 
Middle items as surplus

F. Update on bleachers
G. Policy adjustment
H. Other

V. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
A. Neil Cox
B. Nicki Salyer
C. WCEA

VI. ACTION ITEMS
A. Revision of middle school athletic event ticketing
B. CTE Position for Criminal Justice course
C. Gray Elementary Gymnasium Bleachers



D. Guard Shacks at Daniel Boone High and David Crockett High
E. Ionization
F. Removal of Portables
G. 1.800 School Calendar (First Reading)
H. 1.901 Charter School Applications (First Reading)
I. 4.400 Textbooks, Instructional Materials, and Take-Home Instructional 

Technology (First Reading)
J. 4.500 Instructional Materials (Delete)
K. 6.709 Student Fees and Fines (First Reading)

VII. ADJOURNMENT



The Washington County Department of Education met in a workshop session on December 1, 
2020 at 4:00 PM in the Central Office. Attendance is as follows: Mike Masters, Chad Fleenor, 
Annette Buchanan, Mitch Meredith, David Hammond, Mary Beth Dellinger, Whitey Riddle, and 
Keith Ervin.   Chairman Jason Day was absent.

Vice Chair Mike Masters called the meeting to order. Mrs. Dellinger led the pledge. 

Mr. Masters asked that an agenda item be moved: V. CTE Criminal Justice Program- Major Sean 
Judy be moved as the first agenda item.

Major Judy, of the Washington County Sheriff's Department, stated that there were many 
opportunities for criminal justice in the community: two different police academies and nineteen 
agencies in the region. He asked that students be taught the fundamentals of law enforcement and 
new technologies.

Dr. Flanary asked what materials and supplies would be necessary for the program. Major Judy 
said textbooks, fingerprint ink, and simple equipment, which could be supplied through area 
agencies and partnership.  More complex equipment could be modeled by law enforcement and 
guest speakers. 

Mr. Fleenor asked about aptitude testing to identify students for the program. Dr. Flanary 
affirmed that aptitude testing was used.

Mr. Masters asked where students would start. Major Judy said that all applicants start in the jail.

Dr. Flanary asked about minimum age. Major Judy stated 21 years old.

Mrs. Dellinger asked about teacher qualifications.

Mr. Masters asked about the cost to implement a CTE program.

Dr. Flanary stated that we would have to show labor market data to Tennessee Department of 
Education for federal funding. The teacher would need industry experience and go back to 
school for the occupational licensure. It will require six months to start a new CTE program of 
study. Officer Judy stated that we need to influence this generation of students on what law 
enforcement looks like.

Mr. Masters asked if other school districts have the program in place.  Major Judy said Science 
Hill and possibly Sullivan County offer the programs.

Mr. Meredith asked if ETSU still offered a Criminal Justice Program. Major Judy said yes.



Mr. Fleenor asked how many jobs were available at the Sheriff's Office. Major Judy stated 13 or 
14 and has never been full. Mr. Fleenor said that it would be a fair assumption to state that there 
is a need, but with the data dashboard, it shows that there is not a need - unsupported by the data 
dashboard. Dr. Flanary stated that he is concerned about the minimum age requirement.  

Mr. Ervin asked about ride-alongs. Major Judy said that due to Covid the ride-along program has 
been suspended, but with the right officer, yes. 

Mr. jijFleenor stated that he wanted to see the board take the next step to make this happen by 
August of the new school year.  Mr. Fleenor requested the Criminal Justice Program be added as 
an action item to the December 10th agenda.

Mr. Masters turned the meeting over to Athletic Director Danny Good for an update. Mr. Good 
said all scoreboards have been delivered. Foster Signs will install next week. TSSAA came out 
to do alignments of athletic teams. He said next year will look different. Boone and Crockett may 
be in different conference in some sports such as wrestling. There is a revolving door of 
quarantines due to COVID. 

Athletic Director Josh Kite said the return date is December 14 for David Crockett High girls' 
basketball due to quarantine, therefore a lot of games to make up. Mr. Kite shared the 
determination if Prince Kollie is a Tennessee 5A Mr. Football finalist will be announced on 
December 8th.  

Mr. Masters asked when the first home game is for Daniel Boone High.  Mr. Good said Friday. 
Mr. Kite stated Hardees' Classic held at David Crockett High was a success, and most teams 
were cordial based on the protocols in place because of COVID.

The Board began discussion of turf fields for the high schools.  Mr. Kite referenced research 
about turf that he gave each board member. 

Mr. Good referenced a mock schedule projected on the screen of what a schedule would or could 
look like if each school had turf. Mr. Good stated that right now soccer practices on the baseball 
field, creating wear and tear. Football and band practice off campus a couple days a week. The 
field could be utilized daily with turf. The middle schools could also use the turf for their games.

Mr. Kite stated that their objective is to minimize the damage to the field. With the amount of 
foot traffic each school currently has, it is very difficult to maintain the condition of the field.

Mr. Masters recognized that one or both schools have gone to the playoffs every year for the past 
ten years. He stated that it is past due for our students. 

Dr. Flanary stated that the estimated amount per field is approximately $700,000. That would not 
be end-to-end turf. Specialized equipment would need to be purchased, but the work load would 
be less. Ten years from now it would need to be replaced. Hauling off the old turf would cost 
approximately $80,000-$100,000. 

Mr. Kite said that tournaments could generate money to help offset the cost. 



Mr. Masters asked Mr. Hale his thoughts from a budget perspective with installing turf one 
school per year. Mr. Hale said that it would need to be budgeted during budget season.  

Mr. Masters asked that this item be placed on the agenda for the budget workshop for next fiscal 
year to move forward. 

Mr. Kite said that TSSAA is getting ready to introduce Lacrosse and in order to handle the foot 
traffic, turf would be needed. Current fields could not handle that. 

Mr. Meredith asked about the guidelines for basketball games and total number permitted in the 
gym at Daniel Boone High. Mr. Good stated that 575 is the ticket number and no additional 
tickets will be sold. He continued the capacity is 625, which leaves the space necessary for 
student athletes and coaches. Mr. Good stated that the 625 number is 1/3 capacity. Mr. Kite 
stated that no families had trouble attending during the Hardee's Classic. 

  

Mr. Meredith asked if a cost to replace the bleachers in the gyms at both high schools had been 
received. Mr. Patrick said that he has attempted contact with the dealer three times and has not 
heard back. He stated that he does have a plan with the athletic directors on what they would like 
to do, which includes the Gray Elementary bleachers. 

Mr. Fleenor asked the cost to replace the Gray Elementary bleachers. Mr. Patrick said $105,500. 
Mr. Fleenor asked about additional bids. Mr. Patrick said did not have additional bids. Mr. 
Fleenor requested additional bids. 

Mr. Masters asked Mr. Patrick to bring the information to the December 10th meeting if received 
from the high school vendor.  

 

Mr. Fleenor asked about increasing tickets for middle school athletic events in larger gyms . Mr. 
Fleenor suggested two people per student athlete or up to one-third capacity. Mr. Masters asked 
the athletic directors for their thoughts. Mr. Good said that he has offered Daniel Boone High 
gym, but no one has asked to use the gym. He agreed with one-third capacity. 

Mr. Fleenor requested the middle school ticketing protocol added to the December 10th meeting 
agenda.

Mrs. Buchanan shared concern that some families could not afford the athletic pass and had a 
difficult time coming up with money to attend games. Mr. Patterson shared that families were 
eligible for a payment plan. Mrs. Buchanan asked if that was implemented consistently across 
the district. Mr. Patterson said that all principals adopted the procedure during a principals' 



meeting. 

Mr. Masters asked about an issue at Ridgeview Elementary with adults not bringing their passes 
for admittance. Mrs. Buchanan asked if there was a roster for passes. Mr. Patterson stated that 
rosters are maintained. Mr. Kite said that the pass issue is happening across multiple schools, not 
just Ridgeview. Mr. Good explained how tickets were sold above the use of passes. He stated 
that administrators would determine how many tickets could be sold above the passes. 

Mrs. Buchanan stated that since the principals made this decision together, we should honor what 
they decided. It should be consistent. Mr. Fleenor said that it is not consistent. Mr. Masters said 
that he wants to be sure that parents could watch their kids. Mr. Ervin stated that is why he said 
four passes per athlete. Mrs. Buchanan said that the principals made the decision, and we should 
back them. 

Mrs. Dellinger asked that Gray Elementary bleachers be an action item for the December 10th 
meeting. 

Mr. Masters adjourned the athletics portion of the workshop.

Mr. Masters called the meeting to order for facilities.  

First item for discussion, was constructing new guard shacks at Daniel Boone High and David 
Crockett High.  Mr. Riddle asked the cost for restrooms to be installed in the shacks. 

Mr. Patrick said $24,000 each with restrooms. The challenge is getting water to it and waste 
away from it is the biggest problem. He stated the cost for pre-fabricated without restrooms was 
$7,314 per unit. 

Mr. Masters asked about port-a-potty. Mr. Riddle said roughly $100 per month each.

Mr. Masters requested implementing new guard shacks for both schools be placed as an action 
item on the December 10th meeting agenda.

Discussion began regarding sanitizing the schools.  

Dr. Flanary said the cost would be $30,000 based on square foot of schools. All of our schools 
now have spray equipment for sanitizing - one device at each school in use on a regular schedule. 
He continued the chemical is safe and is the same as Lysol. Mr. Patrick described the device as a 
backpack that is used once a week for deep cleaning or if needed because of contract tracing. 

Mr. Masters asked if grants were available to help fund the sanitation service. Dr. Flanary said 
Cares Act grants if more money is made available in the future. Mrs. Dellinger asked if Cares 
Act money could be used to hire temporary staff. Dr. Flanary said it could if more money is 
made available. 



Mr. Riddle asked for an update on ionizing units. Dr. Flanary said that the price tag is about 
$500,000 to $600,000 according to discussions with Energy Savings Group. Mr. Patrick clarified 
that this amount includes large capacity areas such as cafeterias, libraries, gyms. 

Mrs. Buchanan asked how long it would take to install? Mr. Patrick said they could start 
immediately with board action. There are about 800 units to install. 

Mrs. Dellinger asked if other school systems have the units in place. Dr. Flanary answered yes, 
Bristol, VA School System. 

Mr. Patrick stated that this item is incorporated with Energy Systems Group's energy savings 
contract. Dr. Flanary said no bid was needed. 

Mr. Masters asked Mr. Hale about how it would impact finances. Mr. Hale said it would come 
from the fund balance, or we would need to cut from the current budget. 

Mr. Ervin asked for a final cost to make a decision about using funds from the fund balance or 
approaching the county commission. 

Mrs. Buchanan stated that this item is a priority. Mr. Riddle stated that this is important in order 
to get students back in school. Mr. Masters asked Mr. Patrick to bring final cost to the December 
10th meeting and for ionization implementation to be placed on the agenda as an action item. 

Mr. Meredith asked Dr. Flanary if this is an investment to keep students in the classroom. Dr. 
Flanary said that this is the single best thing we can do to keep everyone safe. 

Mrs. Buchanan asked Mrs. Wagner if barriers would be beneficial in K-3. Mrs. Wagner said a 
barrier is always beneficial, but it would not lower the quarantine numbers. 

Mrs. Hayes said that we cannot forget that we need an action plan if the current situation 
continues throughout the year. We need a plan to support parents, students, and teachers to 
increase engagement of online learning of our students if quarantines continue throughout the 
school year.  

Dr. Flanary said that he contacted Johnny Deakins, Washington County Highway Department, at 
the board's direction regarding the road project to the athletic facility at David Crockett High. 
Mr. Deakins can complete the road project for $3,000.   

Dr. Flanary wanted to notify that board that there are some new capital needs.  He also shared the 
chairperson of the County Commission Health, Education, and Welfare Committee has a new 
procedure for presenting requests/needs. 

Mr. Riddle asked about the ionization units in regards to making a request to the HEW 



Committee. Dr. Flanary said that they prefer to view items a year in advance, but he could make 
a strong case for it. Mr. Riddle asked Dr. Flanary to present the need it to HEW.  

Dr. Flanary has spoken to the principals about their portable buildings. Gray Elementary would 
like to keep portables. The other principals said that they can be removed. Mr. Patrick stated that 
these portables are a liability. 

The Board placed removal of portables as an action item on the December 10th meeting agenda.  

Dr. Flanary presented a request for renovations in the school nutrition and office spaces that 
house technology staff and secondary education staff in the central office.  He continued that 
nothing has been done in the areas since the 80s.  He  provided an estimate of $60,000. He stated 
it is already on state contract and requires no bid. 

The board viewed pictures of the current rooms.  The board scheduled a walkthrough at 4:30 
before the December 10th meeting.  

Dr. Flanary said a list will be available for the December 10th meeting of the remaining items at 
the old Boones Creek Middle to be declared as surplus.   Mr. Riddle asked about the process. Dr. 
Flanary stated that the auditors like to see it listed for auction on Gov Deals before disposing of 
the equipment. 

Mrs. Buchanan asked if the soundboard at Lamar Elementary to be replaced was covered by 
insurance. Dr. Flanary said that he would talk to Dr. Adams to determine coverage.

  

Mr. Fleenor asked the status of the moisture issue at Boones Creek Elementary. Mr. Patrick said 
that the levels were going down from what he could tell, but he was in communication 
concerning the warranty.  Mr. Riddle stated that legal action may need to be taken. 

Mr. Fleenor asked if there was more information on the installation of the Boones Creek 
Elementary playground equipment. Mr. Riddle stated that the estimate was over $100,000. Mr. 
Patrick said that we can find contractors, but we would need specifications to put it out for bid. 
Mr. Fleenor asked Mr. Patrick to get a quote on cost to install the playground equipment by next 
month. 

Mr. Riddle adjourned the facilities section of the agenda.  

Mr. Meredith opened the finance session and turned the session over to Chief Financial Officer, 
Brad Hale. 

Mr. Hale presented the revenue analysis report. Mr. Meredith noted that revenue is higher than 
this time last year. 

Mr. Hale presented the sales tax analysis and key expenses. 



Mr. Hale asked for questions on the payables report. Since there were no questions, Mr. Hale 
concluded the general fund portion of the meeting. 

Mr. Hale presented the federal fund report and asked for questions. Since there were no 
questions, Mr. Hale moved to the last document: Dietary Overview Graph. Mr. Hale asked for 
questions. Mr. Meredith asked about meals and reimbursement. Dr. Flanary affirmed 100% 
reimbursement. Mr. Meredith asked if this line would continue to increase. Dr. Flanary stated 
that he believed so. 

Mr. Meredith asked for questions. Seeing none, Mr. Meredith said that action would be taken at 
the regularly scheduled board meeting on the General Fund, Federal Fund, and Dietary Fund 
Statements.  

The Board began Policy review of the following policies and determined actions items as noted 
for the December 10th board meeting.

 Dr. Ashley Keys asked the board to make a language change in line 10 to match the MOU - 
"Eleven (11) paid vacation days..." in Policy 1.800- School Calendar

Action Item: Policy 1.800 School Calendar - Staff is requesting that the board waive first reading 
and pass on second reading.

Action Item: Policy 1.901 Charter School Applications - Mr. Fleenor recommended waiving first 
reading and passing on second reading.

Policy 2.805 - no action needed upon review.   

Action Item: Policy 4.400 Textbooks, Instructional Materials & Take Home Instructional 
Technology - Mr. Fleenor asked to waive first and pass on second reading. 

The Board reviewed Policy 4.4061 Social Media - Mr. Fleenor asked Dr. Flanary and Dr. Keys 
to send this policy to Attorney Scott Bennett for review.   

Action Item: Policy 4.500 Instructional Materials. This policy needs to be deleted if 4.400 passes 
on second reading.  

The Board continued review and discussion as requested at the November 5 Board meeting of 
Policy 5.6101 Supplemental Pay Schedule.  Mr. Fleenor asked how the JROTC payment started. 
Mr. Hale said that we think it originated with a cost-of-living adjustment. JROTC is only paid at 
50% by WCBE. The payment has been in place for at least 23 years. 

Mr. Fleenor stated that he did not want to cut their pay, but with new positions, we should go 
back to the original method due to the complexity of the payment calculation. 

Mr. Hale said that the board's motion at the November 5th meeting took care of this fiscal year. 



Mr. Meredith stated that the policy could be reviewed during budget season, and the language 
could be simplified. 

Mr. Fleenor asked Mr. Hale to reach out to other Chief Financial Officers to see how other 
school systems pay the JROTC instructors.  

The Board reviewed Policy 6.206 Transfers within the system.  No recommended action was 
taken.  

Action Item: Policy 6.709 Student Fees & Fines - policy will be considered on first reading for 
the December board meeting.  

 

Dr. Flanary stated that staff was developing plans for K-4 in-person instruction. Mrs. Dellinger 
addressed concerns about a higher enrollment in 4th grade. She stated that some 4th grade 
classes have 28 students. Dr. Flanary stated that 4th grade enrollment is only 16 students higher 
than 3rd grade in the county. 

Mrs. Buchanan asked Dr. Keys to find out if NearPod was purchased only for high school, and if 
so, how much would it cost for 6-8.  

Mr. Riddle moved to enforce the Governor's Executive Order 65 to allow Board members to 
attend meetings by electronic means.  Mrs. Dellinger seconded the motion. 

Mr. Meredith asked about people who would like to address the board. Mrs. Buchanan asked if 
those individuals could address the board virtually.   The Board agreed individuals requesting to 
address the Board may do so electronically.

Mr .Masters stated that Director Search interviews needed to be tentatively changed to February 
22nd & 23rd due to TSBA Legislative Conference on February 15th and 16th.

Mr. Masters stated December 10th meeting will start at 5:00 p.m. with a walkthrough at 4:30 PM 
of the proposed Central Office renovations.  

The meeting was adjourned.









Page 1 of 4 
old BCM Surplus List 

Item  Location  Number  photo 

tables  

 

99 

 

task chairs  

 

35 

 

floor cleaner  outside cafeteria  1 

 



 
Page 2 of 4 

old BCM Surplus list  

December 2020 

Item  Location  Number  photo 

laptop carts  outside cafeteria  2 

 

dishwasher  kitchen  1 

 

convection ovens  kitchen  2 

 

sink  kitchen  1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 4 
old BCM Surplus list  

December 2020 

Item  Location  Number  photo 

warmer  kitchen  1 

 

serving cart  cafeteria  1 

 

serving cart  cafeteria  1 

 

Library Tables Library 4 

 

 

 



                                                                        Page 4 of 4 
                                                                           Old BCM Surplus List 

                                                                      Dec 2020 
 

Computer Tables Library 10 

 

 





Initials: ________

MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC.  6136 Old Bush River Road, Columbia, SC 29212  Phone: 803-749-4354   Fax: 803-749-9489
Pages 1 of 3

DANIEL BOONE HIGH SCHOOL          LK3074R1 DAVID CROCKETT HIGH 
SCHOOL

LK3075R1

Washington County Schools Date: 12/3/2020
Attn: Mr Danny Good Estimated By: Lee Keisler
405 W College Street Phone: 423-426-3164
Jonesborough, TN  37659 Fax:

For Delivery/Completion: __2nd___ Quarter 2021 

Payment Terms: 90% Within 15 days of material delivery

10% Upon Completion (Within 15 days of completion; 1.5% penalty every month thereafter

Ref. # Description Proposal Price

LK3075A Deliver and Install New Sheridan Bleachers:
Manufactured by Sheridan Gymnasium Equipment, Ltd.;

Bleacher Bank A:  Length: 78’ – 0” Rows: (5)
Bleacher Bank B:  Length: 78’ – 0” Rows: (5)
Gross Seating: 520.
Row spacing: 24".   Row Rise: 10".
Operation: Manual.
Seats: Molded Contoured Plastic Modules (from Standard Color 
Selection). 
ADA: As required by governing codes.
Recoverable Wheelchair Cutouts.
Foot Level Aisles as required by governing codes.
Self storing Safety End Rails (as required).
Maintenance Free Aisle Rails.

NOTE:
Price does not include demolition and removal of existing bleachers.

Sheridan also provides a TWENTY year limited warranty on the 
understructure as opposed to the industry standard five year warranty.

$50,457.00

LK3075B Demolition and Removal of the Existing Bleachers:

Scope of Work: Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and waste 
receptacles to dismantle bleachers and remove all materials and debris 
from the premises.

1. All work to be completed in a workmanship like manner in accordance 

$8,892.00



Continued

Initials: ________

MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC.  6136 Old Bush River Road, Columbia, SC 29212  Phone: 803-749-4354   Fax: 803-749-9489
Pages 2 of 3

with all local, state and federal regulations. Work is also to be 
completed in accordance with standard practices.

2. Where required, necessary precautions are to be taken to protect the 
gym flooring.

3. Upon completion the gym is to be left broom clean.
4. Work does not include nor is it limited to the following: patching of 

any kind, preparation of areas for new surfaces/finishes, 
cutting/capping/re-routing of utilities, temporary barricades, asbestos 
survey, removal of asbestos containing materials, or air monitoring.

LK3075C ADD 208v three phase Electric Friction Drive System.

NOTE:
Price does not include electrical rough-in.  This is to be done by the owner 
prior to our arrival.

$3,557.00

LK3075D Add 50 Plastic Seat Back (rows 1 & 2) with a 28”row spacing on those 
2 rows only

$2,495.00

PLEASE USE REFERENCE #/'s WHEN PLACING AN ORDER

Accepted Declined
LK3075A ⁭ ⁭ $50,457.00

LK3075B ⁭ ⁭ $8,892.00

LK3075C $3,557.00

LK3075D $2,495.00
NOTE: 
CREDIT CARD: If paying by credit card there will be a 3% surcharge to the total amount of the contract.

Accepted By: __________________________________________________   Date: __________________

Purchase Order #: _____________________

(Initial and return all pages via mail to address above or fax to 803-749-9489)

Billing Address (if different than above):

Attn: __________________________________________________________

Address: __________________________________________________________

City: ___________________________ State: _____ Zip: __________



Continued

Initials: ________

MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC.  6136 Old Bush River Road, Columbia, SC 29212  Phone: 803-749-4354   Fax: 803-749-9489
Pages 3 of 3

This proposal, when signed, will be used as your acceptance and authorization for purchase of the product/service listed above at the above 
price. Any alteration or deviation from specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon a written change order and will become an 
additional charge over and above the above stated prices.

Washington County Schools requires that a written purchase order be issued to execute this proposal.

Yes: _______ No: _______

Important: Terms of This Proposal
ABOVE Prices Include Materials, Labor, Transportation and Sales Tax Unless Otherwise Noted. The prices shown above are applicable only to 
this particular proposal and are not to be considered valid for additional orders, except by prior written agreement from MasterCraft 
Renovation Systems, LLC. Prices do not include performance and payment bonds, permits and/or licenses, ENGINEERED DRAWINGS, 
STATE APPROVAL PROCESS, LOCAL CODE COMPLIANCE, OR ANY OTHER EXTRANEOUS FEES. All work to be completed in a 
workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Labor rates are based on MRS, LLC payroll and not prevailing wages. Unless otherwise 
specified herein, the price is based upon normal working hours of 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday, if we are required to work 
other hours or under other conditions; such work will be subject to price increases. 

This Proposal is Valid for 30 Days. An Escalation May Occur after this period.

The information herein is intended exclusively for use by the receiver and shall not be disclosed to any employee, consultant, or third party 
without the express written consent of MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC. In consideration for the submittal of this proposal, the receiver 
agrees that the information disclosed herein is proprietary and in the event of any breach MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC shall be 
entitled to injunctive relief as a cumulative and not necessarily successive or exclusive remedy to claim for monetary damages.



Initials: ________

MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC.  6136 Old Bush River Road, Columbia, SC 29212  Phone: 803-749-4354   Fax: 803-749-9489
Pages 1 of 3

DAVID CROCKETT HIGH 
SCHOOL

LK3075R1

Washington County Schools Date: 12/3/2020
Attn: Mr Danny Good Estimated By: Lee Keisler
405 W College Street Phone: 423-426-3164
Jonesborough, TN  37659 Fax:

For Delivery/Completion: __2nd___ Quarter 2021 

Payment Terms: 90% Within 15 days of material delivery

10% Upon Completion (Within 15 days of completion; 1.5% penalty every month thereafter

Ref. # Description Proposal Price

LK3075A Deliver and Install New Sheridan Bleachers:
Manufactured by Sheridan Gymnasium Equipment, Ltd.;

Bleacher Bank A:  Length: 78’ – 0” Rows: (5)
Bleacher Bank B:  Length: 78’ – 0” Rows: (3)
Gross Seating: 416.
Row spacing: 24".   Row Rise: 10".
Operation: Manual.
Seats: Molded Contoured Plastic Modules (from Standard Color 
Selection). 
ADA: As required by governing codes.
Recoverable Wheelchair Cutouts.
Foot Level Aisles as required by governing codes.
Self storing Safety End Rails (as required).
Maintenance Free Aisle Rails.

NOTE:
Price does not include demolition and removal of existing bleachers.

Sheridan also provides a TWENTY year limited warranty on the 
understructure as opposed to the industry standard five year warranty.

$45,458.00

LK3075B Demolition and Removal of the Existing Bleachers:

Scope of Work: Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and waste 
receptacles to dismantle bleachers and remove all materials and debris 
from the premises.

1. All work to be completed in a workmanship like manner in accordance 

$8,892.00



Continued

Initials: ________

MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC.  6136 Old Bush River Road, Columbia, SC 29212  Phone: 803-749-4354   Fax: 803-749-9489
Pages 2 of 3

with all local, state and federal regulations. Work is also to be 
completed in accordance with standard practices.

2. Where required, necessary precautions are to be taken to protect the 
gym flooring.

3. Upon completion the gym is to be left broom clean.
4. Work does not include nor is it limited to the following: patching of 

any kind, preparation of areas for new surfaces/finishes, 
cutting/capping/re-routing of utilities, temporary barricades, asbestos 
survey, removal of asbestos containing materials, or air monitoring.

LK3075C ADD 208v three phase Electric Friction Drive System.

NOTE:
Price does not include electrical rough-in.  This is to be done by the owner 
prior to our arrival.

$3,557.00

LK3075D Add 50 Plastic Seat Back (rows 1 & 2) with a 28”row spacing on those 
2 rows only

$2,495.00

PLEASE USE REFERENCE #/'s WHEN PLACING AN ORDER

Accepted Declined
LK3075A ⁭ ⁭ $45,458.00

LK3075B ⁭ ⁭ $8,892.00

LK3075C $3,557.00

LK3075D $2,495.00
NOTE: 
CREDIT CARD: If paying by credit card there will be a 3% surcharge to the total amount of the contract.

Accepted By: __________________________________________________   Date: __________________

Purchase Order #: _____________________

(Initial and return all pages via mail to address above or fax to 803-749-9489)

Billing Address (if different than above):

Attn: __________________________________________________________

Address: __________________________________________________________

City: ___________________________ State: _____ Zip: __________



Continued

Initials: ________

MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC.  6136 Old Bush River Road, Columbia, SC 29212  Phone: 803-749-4354   Fax: 803-749-9489
Pages 3 of 3

This proposal, when signed, will be used as your acceptance and authorization for purchase of the product/service listed above at the above 
price. Any alteration or deviation from specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon a written change order and will become an 
additional charge over and above the above stated prices.

Washington County Schools requires that a written purchase order be issued to execute this proposal.

Yes: _______ No: _______

Important: Terms of This Proposal
ABOVE Prices Include Materials, Labor, Transportation and Sales Tax Unless Otherwise Noted. The prices shown above are applicable only to 
this particular proposal and are not to be considered valid for additional orders, except by prior written agreement from MasterCraft 
Renovation Systems, LLC. Prices do not include performance and payment bonds, permits and/or licenses, ENGINEERED DRAWINGS, 
STATE APPROVAL PROCESS, LOCAL CODE COMPLIANCE, OR ANY OTHER EXTRANEOUS FEES. All work to be completed in a 
workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Labor rates are based on MRS, LLC payroll and not prevailing wages. Unless otherwise 
specified herein, the price is based upon normal working hours of 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday, if we are required to work 
other hours or under other conditions; such work will be subject to price increases. 

This Proposal is Valid for 30 Days. An Escalation May Occur after this period.

The information herein is intended exclusively for use by the receiver and shall not be disclosed to any employee, consultant, or third party 
without the express written consent of MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC. In consideration for the submittal of this proposal, the receiver 
agrees that the information disclosed herein is proprietary and in the event of any breach MasterCraft Renovation Systems, LLC shall be 
entitled to injunctive relief as a cumulative and not necessarily successive or exclusive remedy to claim for monetary damages.







268 Christian Church Road, Suite 1 
Johnson City, TN 37615 

 
 

1 

 
 
December 4, 2020 
 
RE: Indoor Air Quality / Ionization Air Cleaning Proposal 
 
 
Dear BOE Members, Dr. Flanary and Mr. Patrick,  
 
 
Per your email request for a specific proposal and timeline for ESG’s recommendation to 
install Ionization air purification devices district wide, we are pleased to provide the 
following proposal. 
 
Based on ESG’s previous engineering and analysis work on all district facilities and in 
partnership with the WCDE Facilities Department, we identified 850 HVAC units that 
represent the most critical areas in each of the district’s facilities.  Most of these HVAC 
units serve a single classroom or office space and a smaller number of HVAC units 
serve larger areas such as cafeterias, libraries, gyms, etc. 
 
The air cleaning technology that ESG is proposing is manufactured by Global Plasma 
Solutions and is a highly patented approach to producing millions of positive and 
negative ions.  When distributed by your existing HVAC unit blower, the ions attach 
themselves to particles in the air and on surfaces and kill a very high percent of any 
viruses, mold or bacteria by breaking down hydrogen bonds in the cell structure of these 
materials.  The certified lab testing on the specific COVID 19 virus has shown the kill 
rate to be over 99%.   In addition to killing the virus, the ions also work to “clump” 
particles in the air to allow standard air filters to function at a higher level of effectiveness 
at trapping harmful materials.  
 
The other major benefit of installing this technology is energy savings.  The devices add 
to the energy efficiency of your facilities in two ways, the first is by keeping the heat 
exchange surfaces of DX, hot water and chilled water coils clean.  The second is by 
allowing per American Society of Heating Refrigeration Air Conditioning Engineers 
(ASHRAE) code standards, the amount of outside air exchange to be reduced based on 
the ability of this technology to clean the air and thus reduce the need to dilute indoor 
pollutants with outside air exchange.  During the worst of the heating and cooling 
months, by reducing the amount of outside air being heated or cooled, significant energy 
savings can be achieved.   
 
ESG proposed scope of work is provided in the attached Exhibit A.  The total project 
cost is $498,773.   We have installed this technology on many school districts across 
Tennessee and are very confident in our team’s ability to make sure it is done correctly 
to gain the maximum benefit for health and safety as well as energy savings.   
 
Our expected timeline of installation is to be complete with all facilities by the end of 
February.  It will be our goal to improve on this expectation which will depend on two key 
factors; when we are released to order materials and the timing of receiving the 
materials.  These devices are in extremely high demand right now and with the second 
wave of COVID cases, demand is increasing.   



268 Christian Church Road, Suite 1 
Johnson City, TN 37615 

 
 

2 

 
It is our expectation to work closely with district representatives to prioritize the most 
important facilities and areas of facilities to begin work in to provide the most immediate 
benefit to school operations.   
 
We greatly appreciate the opportunity to serve WCSD in this very important partnership 
to improve the safety, efficiency and quality of the learning environment. Upon approval 
by the BOE at the upcoming meeting, we will do everything possible to beginning work 
immediately to begin enhancing the safety of the students and staff during this very 
challenging and unprecedented pandemic.      
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Russ Nelson 
 
Russ Nelson, CEM 
Business Development Manager 
423-534-8242 
 



268 Christian Church Road, Suite 1 
Johnson City, TN 37615 

 
 

3 

 
EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

General Provisions 
 

1. Energy Systems Group (ESG) will provide all labor and materials to install the following 
work for complete and useable systems to the extent specifically listed in the following 
scope of work.  Items that are not specifically listed in neither the general scope nor the 
detailed scopes, are not included in the project.  

2. All equipment to be supplied as part of this Exhibit will be provided to the Owner in formal 
submittals for review and approval prior to the Contractor ordering equipment.  

3. The Contractor will be responsible to secure all permits. 
4. Consistent with the parties’ Agreement, a one year warranty will be provided on all 

improvements with any extended warranties from manufactures provided to the Owner. 
5. ESG will produce maintenance and operating manuals for all work listed in this exhibit.  

These manuals will document all equipment installed, provide manufacturer’s operating 
and maintenance details, and define manufacturers’ warranty provisions and instructions.  
ESG will provide the O&M manuals in electronic format. 
 

 
Indoor Air Quality Upgrades 
1. GLOBAL PLASMA SOLUTIONS NEEDLE POINT BIPOLAR IONIZATION (GPS-

NBPI)  
 
 Contractor will furnish and install GPS-NBPI as follows: 
 

• Provide and install (850) GPS-NPBI devices  
 
• GPS-NPBI devices shall be FC-24 models (700) for classrooms and smaller areas 

such as offices. Larger HVAC units serving common areas will receive FC-48 
models (150).  

 
• A final determination will be made with the Owner’s representative to define the 

exact location and model to be installed in each building and the specific HVAC 
units.   

 
• Provide all necessary electric accessories including transformers necessary 

for equipment function. 
 

• Provide the necessary sheet metal modification, mounting plate or bracket needed 
for mounting the devices. 

 
• Functional check of GPS-NPBI operation 

 
• Jobsite clean-up and documentation of installation  

 


	Agenda
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA
	B. Finance
	Finance Committee Report_October Report_12-01-2020_FINAL SIGNED

	C. Personnel

	III. CONSIDERATION OF MEETING AGENDA
	IV. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	A. Recognition of Dr. Mary Beth Hopkins
	B. Virtual Administration Input
	C. Request to extend high school technical support position through end of 2020-2021 school year
	D. 

Approve the attached Federal Disposition Form to allow disposal of the listed federal programs equipment/furniture and declare Boones Creek Middle items as surplus
	Federal Disposition Items
	Surplus List-Old BCM Equipment-Dec 2020

	E. Update on bleachers
	20201204_124845
	LK3074R1 Daniel Boone HS
	LK3075R1 David Crocket HS

	F. Policy adjustment
	G. Other

	V. REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD
	A. Neil Cox
	B. Nicki Salyer
	C. WCEA

	VI. ACTION ITEMS
	A. Revision of middle school athletic event ticketing
	B. CTE Position for Criminal Justice course
	C. Gray Elementary Gymnasium Bleachers
	Scan1774

	D. Guard Shacks at Daniel Boone High and David Crockett High
	E. Ionization
	IAQ Project Proposal 120420

	F. Removal of Portables
	G. 1.800 School Calendar (First Reading)
	H. 1.901 Charter School Applications (First Reading)
	I. 4.400 Textbooks, Instructional Materials, and Take-Home Instructional Technology (First Reading)
	J. 4.500 Instructional Materials (Delete)
	K. 6.709 Student Fees and Fines (First Reading)

	VII. ADJOURNMENT
	Washington County School System - WorkshopMinutes December 1 2020

